March 6, 2017

Honorable Council President Herb Wesson Jr.
President, Los Angeles City Council

200 North Spring Street, Room 430

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Dear Honorable Council President and the Rules, Elections, Intergovernmental
Relations, and Neighborhoods Committee:

On behalf of the Drug Policy Alliance (DPA), a local and national organization that
advocates to end the war on drugs and to build new drug policies that are grounded in
science, compassion, health, and human rights, I write to express support of the LA City
ballot measure commonly known as Measure M, or the Los Angeles Cannabis
Enforcement, Taxation and Regulation Act. Nonetheless, we respectfully request the
City to consider our primary concerns with the measure, as we understand that Prop D
must be repealed and the passage of Measure M is a necessary next step towards
equitable cannabis reform in Los Angeles.

Measure M requires all marijuana business to possess a city issued license, permit or
authorization. In order to persuade businesses to comply, Measure M subjects
unlicensed businesses to a civil penalty, which is a public nuisance subject to a maximum
civil penalty of $20,000 for each and every offense. The measure further states that each
day a violation continues is deemed to be a new and separate offense. This fee is
unreasonable. Although intended to curb the illicit market and push businesses into
regulatory compliance, this excessive fee will likely have the opposite effect. It is likely to
prevent small and emerging businesses from competing fairly with larger businesses with
access to more capital. We hope that future amendments and changes to this measure
include fees that are reasonable and scaled appropriately to business type and size or to
the size of the violation.

In addition to the civil penalty, Measure M creates a new criminal penalty, with the
possibility of a jail sentence, for failure to comply with the licensing provisions.

The Adult Use of Marijuana Act reduced the penalties for selling cannabis and
possessing cannabis with the intent to sell from felonies to misdemeanors with certain
exceptions. See Cal. Health and Safety Code §§ 11359 and 11360. Violation of either
statute can result in a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not more than $500, up to
six months in jail, or both. Measure M, would create a new misdemeanor, for similar
conduct that is already punishable as such under state law, yet with a more expensive
fine.

Furthermore, Measure M spreads liability for such conduct in ways that may have
unintended consequences. For example, the $500 fine or six month term of
imprisonment may be levied against an employee or volunteer who works or volunteers
for an entity that engages in medical or adult use cannabis related activities without a
license. As the language of the measure reads, this is true regardless of whether or not
the employee or volunteer was aware of whether the entity was properly licensed. It
would be unreasonable to require that an unknowing employee or volunteer be subject
to criminal liability because their employer was without proper license permit or
authorization, especially because these can be revoked at any time for a number of
different reasons.
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DPA seeks clarification as to the intent of these aforementioned penalties to ensure that
there is a distinction between penalties levied against formal businesses and their related
entities as opposed to individuals who merely violate state law.

As it is imperative to remove the restrictive and ineffective policies of Prop. D, the Drug
Policy Alliance looks forward to necessary changes to cannabis policy within the City of
Los Angeles. At the present time, Measure M seems to be the most effective vehicle to
reach such a destination. However, it will be just as important to recognize and address
these concerning issues with the measure. By addressing these issues, the City can work
to ensure that cannabis reform is equitable, inclusive and committed to social justice.

We appreciate all that the City has done to move these important policies forward and
look forward to working with the City as you continue this process. For more
information about our organization or position, please contact Cat Packer at 213-226-
6427 or cpacker(@drugpolicy.org.

Sincerely,
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Cat Packer
Policy Coordinator
Drug Policy Alliance
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